
AMENDMENT #2: Ecuador: Guayaquil Airport Sustainability Plan Technical Assistance 
(2021-51006A) 
 
POC: Anna Amaya, USTDA, 1101 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 1100, Arlington, VA 22209-3901, 
Tel: (703) 875-4357, Fax: (703) 775-4037, Email: RFP@ustda.gov.   

 

Please note that the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Guayaquil Airport Sustainability Plan 
Technical Assistance in Ecuador is amended, as follows: 

Questions, Answers, and Reminders: This amendment consists of questions and answers 
submitted by potential Offerors regarding the RFP. Responses to submitted questions are below. 
 
Q1: Will the contract contain terms and conditions in addition to USTDA’s mandatory 
clauses? Could you provide the form of contract containing all applicable terms and 
conditions? 
A1: The template of the Secondary Agreement (Contract) is available in the USTDA Document 
Center at: https://ustda.gov/ustda-document-center/. 
 
Q2: RFP Section 2.23(a) states that the Offeror will provide local transportation, office 
space and secretarial support required to perform the TOR if such support is not provided 
by the Grantee.  Do you plan to provide such support? 
A2: Per the Grantee, they will use their best efforts to make working space available during the 
Contractor’s travel to Guayaquil, such as meeting rooms, limited secretarial support, office 
internet connection, printing support, and local transportation. 
 
Q3: Is the 1962 Economic, Technical and Related Assistance (ETRA) agreement between 
the U.S. and Ecuador still in effect and, if so, could you provide a copy of the agreement? 
A3: The list of U.S. Treaties in Force is available from the Office of Treaty Affairs at the U.S. 
Department of State at https://www.state.gov/bureaus-offices/treaty-affairs/. 
 
Q4: As the RFP clearly states that USTDA funds may not be used to pay any taxes, tariffs, 
duties, etc., is an exemption from such taxes available to US contractors? 
A4: Please refer to Clause N of the USTDA Mandatory Contract Clauses in Appendix 3 of the 
RFP. USTDA is not in a position to provide any information regarding any taxes, tariffs, duties, 
fees or other levies imposed under laws in effect in the Host Country. 
 
Q5: Will the contractor awarded the technical assistance contract also be eligible bid on 
and receive future contracts, including those for design, construction and/or development, 
at Guayaquil airport? 
A5: Per the Grantee, the final designs for the future airport project will be put together and 
presented to the Grantee by the current operator or a different operator (whichever operator wins 
the future airport concession process). For this reason, the Grantee does not have any objections 
or say on decisions made by the operator of the future airport. 
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Q6: Which organization has final decision and/or final approval of deliverable authority? 
Please elaborate on the decision making and approval process for the Project between 
USTDA and AAG. 
A6: Please refer to Clauses G and I of the USTDA Mandatory Contract Clauses in Appendix 3 of 
the RFP. 
 
Q7: Will the successful bidder receive a copy of the full KED Group study of potential U.S. 
exports at the existing Guayaquil and Quito airports? 
A7: Portions of a background Definitional Mission, including a section on U.S. Export Potential, 
are provided for reference in Appendix 2 of the RFP, for background information only. 
 
Q8: Would this TA work be considered design consulting since the sustainability 
recommendations would need to be incorporated into design documents? 
A8: Per the Grantee, all recommendations that derive from this TA that seem applicable for the 
Grantee will be required and expected to be included in the final design documents. 
 
Q9: Please confirm that per USTDA’s nationality, source, and origin requirements issued 
in May 2022, Offerors may include on their team non-Host Country citizens lawfully 
admitted for work and/or permanent residence in the Host Country. 
A9: Please refer to USTDA Nationality, Source and Origin Requirements, which are available in 
the USTDA Document Center at: https://ustda.gov/ustda-document-center/. 
 
Q10: Please confirm that meetings with local stakeholders (e.g., Client’s technical team and 
project engineers, key airport staff, and Guayaquil-based airline representatives) can be 
conducted through a mix of in-person meetings and virtual/teleconference meetings? 
A10: Please refer to the Terms of Reference in Appendix 3 of the RFP. 
 
Q11: Is AAG supporting the U.S. Firm to arrange initial meetings and follow up meetings 
with key local stakeholders (e.g., Client’s technical team and project engineers, key airport 
staff, and Guayaquil-based airline representatives, environmental agencies, energy 
regulatory agency, other relevant agencies like the Ecuadorian Directorate of Civil 
Aviation (DGAC) and the Ministry of Transport)? 
A11: Per Task 2 of the Terms of Reference in Appendix 3 of the RFP, the Contractor shall 
conduct “discussions with the airport planners, designers, the Client, airport representatives, 
airlines and other relevant stakeholders (i.e., relevant environmental and meteorological 
agencies, air navigation services provider). The list of stakeholders shall be reviewed in advance 
and approved by the Client.” Per the Grantee, they will use their best efforts to provide assistance 
and guidance to support meetings with the relevant stakeholders. 
 
Q12: Page 9 of the RFP states: "Offerors shall submit evidence that they have relevant past 
experience and have previously delivered advisory, feasibility study and/or other services 
similar to those required in the TOR, as applicable." Please confirm that the submission of 
the project references constitutes “evidence” per the above requirement. If additional 
“evidence” is required, please clarify what type of documentation must be submitted. 
A12: Please refer to Section 3.6 of the RFP. 
 



Q13: Please clarify that the award criteria for the Offeror described on page 14 can be 
cumulatively met by the US Prime Contractor and its sub-contractors. 
A13: Per the Grantee, projects presented and used to meet required experience can be applied in 
more than one of the requirements, as long as they are applicable. Also, experience from 
subcontractors can be applied to the requirements under 1, 3, & 4.    
 
Q14: The award criteria on page 14 provide 4 points for “structural personnel organization 
chart” – please clarify whether this organizational chart should be presented in the 
Technical Approach and Work Plan section or if it should be presented in the 
Organizational Structure, Management Plan, and Key Personnel section of the technical 
proposal. 
A14: Per the Grantee, in order to avoid any confusion, they recommend including this chart in 
both sections. 
 
Q15: Please clarify what is meant by “Program activities and assignment of personnel” 
within the award criteria for Technical Approach and Work Plan. 
A15: Per the Grantee, the program activities and assignment of personnel helps the Grantee 
understand what personnel will be assigned to which task(s) in particular. At the same time, the 
program activities will provide details on the work that will be performed in each task. 
 
Q16: Which firm prepared the existing Master Plan for the Guayaquil International 
Airport and is this firm eligible to bid for this proposal? 
A16: Per the Grantee, the Master Plan and Conceptual Design were prepared by LeighFisher. 
The Grantee is soliciting technical proposals from qualified U.S. firms to provide expert 
consulting services to perform this TA. The Grantee has no objections to any and all qualified 
U.S. firms participating in this RFP, as long as they meet USTDA requirements. 
 
Q17: Is KED Group eligible to participate in this solicitation process? Is KED Group 
eligible to bid on the project? 
A17: The company/consultants that prepared the background Definitional Mission report are 
precluded from participating in this RFP. 
 
Q18: Who will pay the direct costs of the knowledge-transfer activities and technical 
workshop (Task 6, Task 8, Task 11) with local stakeholders (auditorium, meeting rooms, 
translation, printed materials, coffee breaks, etc.)? 
A18: Per the Terms of Reference in Appendix 3 of the RFP, the Contractor is responsible for 
delivering the entirety of the Terms of Reference. 
 
Q19: Please confirm that the Subcontractor Information Form should only be completed 
for U.S. subcontractors. 
A19: A Subcontractor Information Form is required for each proposed subcontractor, both U.S. 
and Host Country subcontractors. 
 
 
 



Q20: Please confirm the target start date of the TA and the estimated completion date for 
the TA. 
A20: Per Section 3.5 of the RFP, Offerors should develop their own proposed Technical 
Approach and Work Plan, including a detailed schedule of performance. 
 
Q21: Please confirm that the official language to be used during the TA, including 
stakeholder consultations, will be English. 
A21: Per the Grantee, the official language for this TA is English. However, as noted in the 
Award Criteria (Section 4 of the RFP), the Spanish language skills of key staff is a selection 
criterion. 
 
Q22: As part of the key areas of sustainability applicable to design, construction, and 
operation, is it expected that we will need to prepare Conceptual/Basic Engineering 
models? What is the expected scope regarding designs or engineering or architectural 
designs? 
A22: Per the Grantee, currently there are no studies performed on these topics. Thus, this TA is 
considered to be at the conceptual planning level. If possible, the more detail that the Contractor 
could include in this TA would prove helpful in order to guide the development of future 
construction design studies. 
 
Q23: Have the environmental permits been approved by the Environmental Authority in 
Guayaquil for the new airport? 
A23: Per the Grantee, in accordance with Ecuadorian environmental regulations, the final 
construction design is required in order to receive an environmental permit/license. Since this 
project does not yet have the final construction design, no environmental permits/licenses can be 
requested yet. 
 
Q24: If the conceptual basic or development engineering documents are available, can they 
be shared with the awarded company? Please share the complete airport master plan. 
Please share the full details of the development program, including the three-phase 
implementation plan. Please provide detailed airport forecasts and background 
methodology. Please provide any potential energy demand forecasts. 
A24: The RFP contains all information available at this stage. In accordance with Task 1 of the 
Terms of Reference in Appendix 3 of the RFP, the Grantee will be providing the Contractor with 
all applicable studies and documents. 
 
Q25: Aside from the 5-page Executive Summary requirement, are there any other page 
limitations for the technical proposal? 
A25: No. 
 
Q26: What is the expected timing to roll out construction? 
A26: Per the Grantee, the estimated timing is six years before opening day. Currently, this would 
place the start of construction in 2025. 
 
 



Q27: Are ground mounted solar options being considered? Does the existing land have 
dedicated space for a solar farm facility or other energy generating facility? 
A27: Per the Grantee, they are open to this and all other applicable solutions for the conditions in 
the Guayaquil region. While there are currently no areas assigned for such facilities, space is 
available in different areas of the airport property, be it landside, airside, or building roofs. 
 
Q28: Are the preliminary airport designs complete? Are the final issued airport designs 
complete? 
A28: No. Per the Grantee, at this point all documents and studies are at conceptual levels for this 
airport project. 
 
Q29: Please provide the methodology used to develop the product list and pricing included 
in Table 4 (Appendix 2). 
A29: Portions of a background Definitional Mission are provided for reference and for 
background information only. 
 
Q30: RFP states that technology analysis will be performed. Does this include analysis of 
management regimes i.e., time of day energy efficiency protocols and operational 
programs? 
A30: Per the Grantee, it would be good if the TA provides such information for future reference. 
 
Q31: RFP document states that potential funding is a barrier of development. Is the 
technical advisor expected to identify potential funders for the recommended technology 
adoption? 
A31: Please refer to Task 7 of the Terms of Reference in Appendix 3 of the RFP. 
 
Reminders 
 

• Per section 2.3 of the RFP, “USTDA sponsored a Definitional Mission to address 
technical, financial, sociopolitical, environmental and other aspects of the proposed 
project. Portions of the report are attached at Appendix 2 for background information 
only. Please note that the final and authoritative TOR referenced in the report are 
included as Annex I to the Grant Agreement, attached as Appendix 3 to this RFP.” 

 
• The RFP contains all information available at this stage. Per Task 1 of the Terms of 

Reference, the Grantee will be providing the Contractor with relevant reports and other 
available documents and information. 

 
• Per section 3.5 of the RFP, “Based on the Work Plan, and previous project experience, 

describe any support that the Offeror will require from the Grantee.” 
 


